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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

Bureau of Indian Affairs 

American Indian Population and Labor 
Force Report 

AGENCY: Bureau of Indian Affairs, 
Interior. 

ACTION: Notice of proposed renewal of a 
current information collection; 
comment request. 

SUMMARY: The Assistant Secretary— 
Indian Affairs (AS–IA) is seeking 
comments on the American Indian 
Population and Labor Force Report as 
we prepare to reinstate the collection as 
required by the Paperwork Reduction 
Act of 1995. The Indian Employment, 
Training and Related Services 
Demonstration Act (Act) of 1992 
requires the Secretary to develop, 
maintain and publish, not less than 
biennially, a report on the population by 
gender, income level, age, and 
availability for work. 

DATES: Submit comments on or before 
November 17, 2008. 

ADDRESSES: Your comments and 
suggestions on the requirements should 
be made directly to Lynn Forcia, 
Division Chief, Division of Workforce 
Development, Office of Indian Energy 
and Economic Development, Office of 
the Assistant Secretary—Indian Affairs, 
Department of the Interior, 1951 
Constitution Avenue, Mail Stop 20-SIB, 
NW., Washington, DC 20245; Telephone 
(202) 219–0740, Facsimile (202) 208– 
4564, E-mail Lynn.Forcia@BIA.GOV. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: You 
may request further information or 
obtain copies of the proposed 
information collection request from 
Lynn Forcia, as identified in the 
ADDRESSES section. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
collection of this information is 
mandated by Congress by Public Law 
102–477 Indian Employment, Training 
and Related Services Demonstration Act 
(Act) of 1992, Section 17a. The Assistant 
Secretary—Indian Affairs (AS–IA) is 
submitting the information collection 
for reinstatement. The information is 
used by interested parties such as tribal 
governments for the purpose of 
designing, planning and developing 
programs, for American Indians. This 
information is used to predict and 
identify the level of need for American 
Indians and Alaska Natives. This survey 
is the only accumulation of data on 
tribal enrollments, service population, 
workforce, and unemployment of tribal 
entities in the U.S. 

Request for Comments: AS–IA 
requests your comments on this 
collection concerning: 

(a) The validity of the methodology 
used; 

(b) The validity of the assumptions 
used, including but not limited to, the 
definition of ‘‘service population’’ with 
its inclusions and exclusion, population 
not available for work exclusions, and 
inclusion of short term, part time or 
season employment characteristics. 

(c) The accuracy of the agency’s 
estimate of the burden (hours and cost) 
of the collection of information; 

(d) The use of a computerized, 
automated collection technique by 
means of the Office of Indian Energy 
and Economic Development’s Web site. 

Please note that an agency may not 
sponsor or request and an individual 
need not respond to, a collection of 
information unless it has a valid OMB 
Control Number. 

It is our policy to make all comments 
available to the public for review at the 
location listed in the ADDRESSES section, 
room 20–SIB, during the hours of 8 a.m. 
to 4 p.m., e.s.t., Monday through Friday, 
except for legal holidays. Please note 
that all comments received will be 
available for public review for two 
weeks after the comment period closes. 
Before including your address, phone 
number, e-mail address or other 
personally identifiable information, be 
advised that your entire comment— 
including your personally identifiable 
information—may be made public at 
any time. While you may request that 
we withhold your personally 
identifiable information, we cannot 
guarantee that we will be able to do so. 
All comments from organizations or 
representatives will be available for 
review. We may withhold comment 
from review for other reasons. 

OMB Control Number: 1076–0147. 
Type of Review: Reinstatement. 
Title: Department of the Interior, 

Office of the Assistant Secretary— 
Indian Affairs, American Indian 
Population and Labor Force Report. 

Brief Description of Collection: Public 
Law 102–477, the Indian Employment, 
Training, and Related Services 
Demonstration Act of 1992, mandates 
the Secretary to publish, not less than 
biennially, a report on the American 
Indian and Alaska Native population 
eligible for services by gender, income 
level, age, and availability for work. The 
process for collecting data has included 
the use of a paper data submission form 
with written instructions to be filled out 
by tribes and then certified at the tribal, 
agency, and regional level. The BIA 
believes that many of the reporting 
issues may be the result of 

misunderstanding of how to fill out this 
data submission form. The Office of 
Indian Energy and Economic 
Development has examined the data 
collection process and is hoping to 
address a truer depiction of tribal 
enrollment and BIA service population 
in Indian Country. 

The Office of Indian Energy and 
Economic Development consulted with 
5 of the 562 federally recognized tribal 
entities, ranging in membership less 
than 5,000 members to more than 
250,000 members. The estimated time it 
took each tribe to respond to the 
biennial report was between one hour 
and four days, depending on the 
resources of the tribal government. It 
will take tribal representatives an 
estimated eight hours to complete the 
survey. 

Number of Respondents: 562. 
Estimated Time per Response: 8 

hours. 
Frequency of Reponses: Biennially. 
Total Annual Burden to Respondents: 

5,000 hours biennially. 
Total Annual Cost to Respondents: 

N/A. 
Dated: September 5, 2008. 

Sanjeev Bhagowalia. 
Chief Information Officer—Indian Affairs. 
[FR Doc. E8–21644 Filed 9–15–08; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4310–XN–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: Certain Cast Steel 
Railway Wheels, Certain Processes for 
Manufacturing or Relating to Same and 
Certain Products Containing Same; 
Notice of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Institution of investigation 
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
August 14, 2008, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 
U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of Amsted 
Industries Incorporated of Chicago, 
Illinois. A letter supplementing the 
complaint was filed on September 2, 
2008. The complaint, as supplemented, 
alleges violations of section 337 based 
upon the importation into the United 
States, the sale for importation, and the 
sale within the United States after 
importation of certain cast steel railway 
wheels and certain products containing 
same by reason of misappropriation of 
trade secrets, the threat or effect of 

VerDate Aug<31>2005 13:43 Sep 15, 2008 Jkt 214001 PO 00000 Frm 00036 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\16SEN1.SGM 16SEN1eb
en

th
al

l o
n 

P
R

O
D

1P
C

60
 w

ith
 N

O
T

IC
E

S



53442 Federal Register / Vol. 73, No. 180 / Tuesday, September 16, 2008 / Notices 

which is to substantially injure an 
industry in the United States. 

The complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue an 
exclusion order and a cease and desist 
order. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint and 
supplement, except for any confidential 
information contained therein, are 
available for inspection during official 
business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) 
in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC 
20436, telephone 202–205–2000. 
Hearing impaired individuals are 
advised that information on this matter 
can be obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on 202– 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server at http:// 
www.usitc.gov. The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at http://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Jeffrey T. Hsu, Esq., Office of Unfair 
Import Investigations, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, telephone (202) 
205–2579. 

Authority: The authority for institution of 
this investigation is contained in section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and 
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules 
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 
(2008). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
September 10, 2008, ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(A) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain cast steel railway 
wheels or certain products containing 
same by reason of misappropriation of 
trade secrets, the threat or effect of 
which is to destroy or substantially 
injure an industry in the United States; 

(2) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is— 

Amsted Industries Incorporated, Two 
Prudential Plaza, 180 North Stetson 
Street, Suite 1800, Chicago, Illinois 
60601. 

(b) The respondents are the following 
entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 

Tianrui Group Company Limited, 63 
East Guangcheng Road, Ruzhou, 
Henan, 467500, China. 

Tianrui Group Foundry Company 
Limited, Bus Station South, Linru 
Town, Ruzhou, Henan, 467541, 
China. 

Standard Car Truck Company, Inc., 865 
Busse Highway, Park Ridge, Illinois 
60068–2359. 

Barber Tianrui Railway Supply, LLC, 
865 Busse Highway, Park Ridge, 
Illinois 60068–2359. 

(c) The Commission investigative 
attorney, party to this investigation, is 
Jeffrey T. Hsu, Esq., Office of Unfair 
Import Investigations, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., 
Suite 401, Washington, DC 20436; and 

(3) For the investigation so instituted, 
Paul J. Luckern, Chief Administrative 
Law Judge, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, shall designate the 
presiding Administrative Law Judge. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(d) and 210.13(a), such 
responses will be considered by the 
Commission if received not later than 20 
days after the date of service by the 
Commission of the complaint and the 
notice of investigation. Extensions of 
time for submitting responses to the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Marilyn R. Abbott, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. E8–21588 Filed 9–15–08; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–638] 

In the Matter of: Certain Intermediate 
Bulk Containers; Notice of 
Commission Issuance of a Limited 
Exclusion Order Against Infringing 
Products of Respondent Found in 
Default; Termination of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission has issued a limited 
exclusion order against infringing 
products of Shanghai Kingtainer 
Packaging Container Co., Ltd., which 
was previously found in default, and 
has terminated the above-captioned 
investigation under section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 
U.S.C. 1337). 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Mark B. Rees, Office of the General 
Counsel, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street, SW., 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
205–3116. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation are or will be available for 
inspection during official business 
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the 
Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20436, 
telephone (202) 205–2000. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
Internet server at http://www.usitc.gov. 
The public record for this investigation 
may be viewed on the Commission’s 
electronic docket (EDIS) at http:// 
edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired 
persons are advised that information on 
this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission instituted this investigation 
on March 10, 2008, based on a 
complaint filed by Schütz Container 
Systems Inc. of North Branch, New 
Jersey and Protechna, S.A. of 
Switzerland (collectively, ‘‘Schütz’’), 
alleging violations of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1337) in 
the importation into the United States, 
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